ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 21, 2011
3:32 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Joe Paskvan, Co-Chair

Senat or Thomas WAgoner, Co-Chair
Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair
Senator Bert Stednan

Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

VMEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Lesil MQuire
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Cathy G essel
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 24

“An Act establishing the Sport Fishing Guide Services Board and
licensing requirenents for sport fishing guide-outfitters, sport
fishing outfitters, sport fishing assistant guides, and sport
fishing transporters; making conform ng anmendnents; allow ng the
Departnment of Fish and Gane to collect information on guiding
services; and providing for an effective date.™

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO 44
"An Act relating to the Southeast State Forest; and providing
for an effective date."

- MOVED SB 24 OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO. 42

"An Act relating to the procurenent of supplies, services,
prof essional services, and construction for the Al aska Energy
Authority; establishing the Alaska Railbelt energy fund and
relating to the fund; relating to and repealing the Railbelt
energy fund; relating to the quorum of the board of the Al aska
Energy Authority; relating to the powers of the Al aska Energy

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- February 21, 2011



Aut hority regarding enployees and the transfer of certain
enpl oyees of the Al aska Industrial Devel opment Export Authority
to the Alaska Energy Authority; relating to acquiring or
constructing certain projects by the Al aska Energy Authority;
relating to the definition of 'feasibility study' in the Al aska
Energy Authority Act; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 24

SHORT TI TLE: SPORT FI SHI NG GUI DI NG SERVI CES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MOGUI RE

01/19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 11
01/19/ 11 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 11 (S) RES, FIN

02/ 07/ 11 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 07/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 07/ 11 (S) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 19/ 11 (S) RES AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 19/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 19/ 11 (S) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 21/ 11 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 44

SHORT TI TLE: SOUTHEAST STATE FOREST
SPONSCR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 19/ 11 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 11 (S) RES, FIN

02/ 07/ 11 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 07/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 07/ 11 (S) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 19/ 11 (S) RES AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 19/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 19/ 11 (S) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 21/ 11 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 42

SHORT TI TLE: POWNER PRQJECT; ALASKA ENERGY AUTHORI TY
SPONSCR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 11 (S) RES, FIN
02/ 09/ 11 (S) RES AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 21, 2011



02/ 09/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 09/ 11 (S) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 11/ 11 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 11/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 11/ 11 (S) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 16/ 11 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 16/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 16/ 11 (S) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 21/ 11 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SARA FI SHER- GOAD, Executive Director

Al aska Energy Authority

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information regarding SB 42.

Brian Bj orkquist, Senior Assistant Attorney General

Cvil Division

Departnent of Law

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information regarding SB 42.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:32:58 PM

CO CHAIR THOVAS WAGONER called the Senate Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:32 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators French, Paskvan, Stevens, W el echowski, and
Wagoner. Senator McQuire was excused.

SB 24- SPORT _FI SHI NG GUI DI NG SERVI CES

3:33: 58 PM

CO CHAI R WAGONER announced the consideration of SB 24, the Sport
Fishing GQuiding Services bill. The sponsor, Senator MGQuire,
asked the committee to establish a subcomrttee to consider this
bill during the Interim Co-Chair Wgoner asked nenbers to
cont act him if they were interested in being on the
subconmittee. He wanted at |east three nmenbers of the conmittee
to serve; so far he and Senator McQuire are on the |ist.

3:35: 05 PM
CO- CHAl R WAGONER announced he would hold SB 24 in conmttee.

SB  44- SOUTHEAST STATE FOREST

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 21, 2011



3:35: 08 PM

CO CHAIR WAGONER announced the consideration of SB 44, the
Sout heast State Forest bill. The admnistration introduced the
bill and public testinony was taken |last Saturday. There is no
conmmttee substitute and no anendnents were offered. He asked
the will of the commttee.

3:35:40 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN noved to report SB 44 from committee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and attached fiscal note(s). There
were no objections and it was so ordered.

3:36: 09 PM
At ease from3:36 p.m to 3:39.

SB  42- PONER PRQJECT; ALASKA ENERGY AUTHORI TY

3:39:39 PM

CO CHAI R PASKVAN announced the consideration of SB 42. Since the
| ast conmttee neeting the Departnent of Law, on behalf of the
bill sponsor, submtted answers to the questions raised by the
commttee but their proposed anmendnent was not received in tine
to take action.

3:40: 30 PM

CO- CHAIR PASKVAN said he would not entertain an anendnent but
the sponsor's representatives could discuss their responses. He
asked Ms. Fischer-Goad and M. Bjorkquist to walk the commttee
through the docunent titled, "Response to Conmittee Questions
and Concerns."

3:42:00 PM

SARA FI SHER- GOAD, Executive Director, Alaska Energy Authority
(AEA), introduced herself and Brian Bjorkquist, Senior Assistant
Attorney General, Gvil Division, Departnent of Law (DQ),
i ntroduced hinsel f.

M5. FI SHER- GOAD said the proposed |anguage does several things.

First, it would renove the authority for AEA to adopt
regul ations for procurenent purposes. Second, it would change
t he | anguage on page 3, line 4, deleting "the authority nmay use"

and inserting "the legislature may appropriate." This section
relates to the Railbelt Energy Fund and the new Al aska Rail belt
Energy Fund essentially having the sane |egislative oversight
and authority for appropriation as exists wth the current
Rai | belt Energy Fund. The one fund would be repealed and the
Al aska Rail belt Energy Fund woul d be created as an AEA fund.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- February 21, 2011



Page 4, line 22, corrects an oversight and deletes the extra
construction that was added in the legislation. The additional
changes allow legislative authority for AEA to create one
specific subsidiary; this would be the subsidiary needed for
devel opnent of the Watana project on the Susitna River.

3:45: 14 PM

AEA would remain exenpt from Regulatory Conm ssion of Al aska
(RCA) oversight for this project. The change would allow AEA to
hire enployees and the fiscal notes address the transfer of
exi sting enployees as AEA enployees. It's appropriate for AEA to
have enpl oyees agai n.

3:46:18 PM

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked if this response was sufficient to get
the Watana project to the Federal Energy Regulatory Comm ssion
( FERC) .

M5. FI SHER- GOAD answer ed yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked about the policy of building Susitna
hydro. Perhaps there should be discussion about this versus
alternatives

CO CHAI R PASKVAN questioned his intent in asking.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI replied the Legislature would be renoved
from oversight under this bill, so he wondered if there should
be nore discussion of ram fications.

CO CHAIR WAGONER said he agreed with regard to fish issues and
t he amount of |and covered by water.

CO-CHAIR PASKVAN stated this bill won't decide all the issues
that need to be deci ded.

3:49: 40 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what would be the role of the
Legislature if this bill were to pass.

M5. FI SHER- GOAD answered this bill starts the prelimnary permt
application and gets FERC attention. AEA could then zero in on
the studies needed and the potential design limtations. There
is also a $65 mllion appropriation bill but that won't get the
project through the entire FERC process, just three years. The

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 21, 2011



Legislature fits in the appropriation process through the
capi tal budget.

3:51: 52 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if this would give AEA authority to
bond.

M5. FISHER-GOAD replied AEA can issue bonds now but wouldn't
have a project to bond for until this process is worked through.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked M. Bjorkquist to coment on or respond
to the question.

BRI AN BJORKQUI ST, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Guvil
Di vision, Departnent of Law (DOL), said through this process,

the issues wll be studied in the FERC |icensing process.
Entities will then use the information when deciding whether to
go forward. FERC will wuse the information, utilities will use
it, and the RCA will use it. The Legislature will also |ook at

the information and decide whether to appropriate additional
funds.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked if AEA would be able to bond w thout
action by the |egislature.

MR. BJORKQUI ST replied they could, but it's not sonething that
could be done w thout the other conponents in place, including
power source agreenents and revenue sources.

3:55: 03 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI said it seemrs  there wll be an
Environnental |npact Statenent and a finding decision, possibly
about inpacts to fish, and that becones the policy call. He

asked who woul d make that policy call about going forward.

MR, BJORKQUI ST said FERC has an obligation to deal with the fish
and wildlife issues and put theminto the license. There is also
a di spute resolution process.

3:56:45 PM
CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked if the conmttee should hold hearings on
t hose i ssues now.

M5. FlI SHER- GOAD answered through this process AEA has provided
overviews of the project. Further conversations wouldn't provide
nore information until there is a dialogue with the federal
agency. |If SB 42 becones law and the application process is

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 21, 2011



conpl ete she believes that AEA will be back before the conmittee
next year.

3:58: 50 PM

CO CHAIR WAGONER said it's up to the comrittee to decide what
information it wants to follow up on. He said he had already
asked the Comm ssioner of Fish and Gane to start thinking about
this project and follow it very closely. The conm ttee should
not wait too long to get information and do the studies. Lots of
work can be done but the commttee could direct the departnents
to do this.

4:00: 04 PM

SENATOR FRENCH said he appreciated the changes on page 3
regarding authority to spend noney, but asked how nuch AEA
expected to draw fromthe fund to do business for the next year;
what would be the draw on the fund for \Watana.

M5. FI SHER-GOAD replied the changes on page three are separate
from the appropriation process. The appropriation in the capital
budget is coming from the existing Railbelt Energy Fund. For
FY12 the potential draw is about $20 million.

SENATOR FRENCH said he understood the changes would be to push
t he Wat ana project forward.

M5. FI SHER-GOAD answered that change sets up a fund which is
simlar to the existing Railbelt Energy Fund. The capital budget
this year appropriates the noney to AEA as a capita
appropriation. The anmendnent is to make sure the new fund has
the sanme authority as the current fund.

4:04:14 PM
SENATOR FRENCH sai d he did not understand.

M5. FI SHER- GOAD replied the capital appropriation is directly to
AEA, not to the new Railbelt Energy Fund

CHAIR FRENCH asked who would oversee the expenditure of the
fund.

MS. FI SHER- GOAD answered we provided information about how that
nmoney would be spent; it is for FERC permtting and licensing
and the Susitna project.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- February 21, 2011



SENATOR FRENCH said then AEA wouldn't need to ask for an
additional appropriation to the fund until the $63 nillion is
spent .

M5. FlI SHER- GOAD responded yes, but the noney could cone from
anot her source.

4: 06: 28 PM
SENATOR FRENCH asked if the Railbelt fund and Witana are
separat e subj ects.

MS. FI SHER- GOAD answer ed yes.

SENATOR FRENCH said, at the end of this year AEA will have $63
mllion and the Al aska Rail belt Energy Fund will have how nuch.

M5. FISHER-GOAD replied that fund won't have a bal ance unless
there is a separate appropriation.

COCHAIR WAGONER said it's up to the finance commttee to
appropriate for this project. That's where the Legislature has
control .

4:08: 14 PM
SENATOR WELECHOMNSKI said if this bill is adopted with the
proposed anendnment, it gives AEA the ability to bond for a

project as per page 4, so the legislature would give up its
over si ght.

MR. BJORKQUI ST answered yes, theoretically, but as a practical
reality there has to be a revenue source to repay the bond or no
one will buy the bonds.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN sai d he wel coned the questions.

4:10: 06 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the bill would also give AEA the
ability to acquire power projects other than Watana.

MS. FI SHER- GOAD answer ed yes.

CO CHAI R WAGONER said but AEA has no revenue source unless the
Legi sl ature rmakes an appropriation.

M5. FISHER-GOAD said that was correct; the intent of the
legislation was not to limt the authority to one project. AEA

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 21, 2011



would |ook at what projects would nmake sense to own to
potentially reduce energy costs for ratepayers.

CO CHAIR WAGONER nentioned Ormat's proposed geothernmal project,
and said they may want to sell AEA the project. He asked how AEA
woul d handl e t hat

M5. FI SHER- GOAD responded AEA would | ook at the revenue source
to pay for that and then approach the Legislature about
financing. The Legi sl ature woul d be invol ved.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the revenue source would be the
noney AEA woul d get back fromits power purchase agreenent.

M5. FISHER-GOAD answered vyes but there are reserve funds
associ ated with those bonds and AEA woul d need to finance those.

MR. BJORKQUI ST added that AEA is also subject to annual
appropriation for operating expenses and that would be subject
to | egislative oversight.

SENATOR W ELECHOANSKI said he didn't understand.

M5. FI SHER-GOAD responded it would depend on the size of the
project and the structure of the financing.

MR. BJORKQUI ST said the revenue source nust be adequate to pay
off the bonds and fund the reserve. The FERC |icense would al so
need to be in place first, as would the power sales agreenent.
Al'l would need to be in place prior to bonding.

4:17: 06 PM

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked if the definition of "project"” on pages 4
and 5 is appropriate for Watana on the Susitna R ver or for
ot her projects statew de.

MR. BJORKQUI ST said under AS 44.83.990(6) a power project means
"a plant, works, system or facility together with necessary or
related facilities and appurtenances including a divided or
undivided interest in or a right to the capacity of a power
project that is used or is useful for the purpose of electrica
or thermal energy production.” It would enconpass all aspects
of hydropower, |like Witana, and other types of electrical
generation projects.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- February 21, 2011



CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked if the words "if approved by |aw' on page
4 nmean that AEA could form a subsidiary corporation from Watana
and receive funds the Legislature thought would go to Watana.

M5. FISHER-GOAD replied it's a two-part process. It gives
gener al authority to «create a subsidiary, but requires
| egislative authority to create a specific subsidiary.

CO CHAIR PASKVAN said if just one subsidiary were forned the
nmoney coul dn't be transferred.

MS. FlI SHER- GOAD answered t hat was correct.

SENATOR FRENCH noted that 44.83.130 says AEA is on the hook for
the bonds it issues, and not the state.

MR BJORKQUI ST replied that is basically correct. Mor al
obl i gati on bonds could be issued, but these would be subject to
| at er appropriation.

SENATOR FRENCH added that before issuing bonds AEA nust give
notice to the Legislature and the governor.

MR. BJORKQUI ST agreed, saying there are no proposed anmendnents
to that section of the |aw

4:22:45 PM

CO CHAI R PASKVAN announced he would hold SB 42 in commttee for
continued work. There being no further business to cone before
the conmttee, he adjourned the neeting at 4:23 p. m

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- February 21, 2011



